
 

https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/COUNCIL - 1st and 3rd Thurs/2022-06-16City Council/2022-06-16CityCouncilAgenda.docx 
6/15/2022 12:54 PM 

                  

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 
 CITY OF WATERLOO COUNCIL AGENDA 

COUNCIL CHAMBER OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING – 136 N. MONROE STREET 
Thursday, June 16, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 
Participate Remotely Or In-Person 

 

Join Zoom Meeting     https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82561116265?pwd=Z0UxLzRYbC9HSkJqalFlNE0xNzRiQT09 
Meeting ID: 825 6111 6265    Passcode: 179855 
Dial by phone          +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
         

 
Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public and news media, that a public meeting will 
be held to consider the following: 
 
1) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

 
2) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: June 2, 2022 

 
3) CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
4) OLD BUSINESS  

a) Leschinger Street – Semi-traffic using newly constructed street (6/2/2022). Update from City Engineer. 
 

 
5) MEETING SUMMARIES (since last Council meeting) 

a) 06/7/2022 & 06/16/2022 Finance, Insurance & Personnel Committee 
 

6) CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
a) May Reports of City Officials & Contract Service Providers 

i) Parks – no report 
ii) Fire & Emergency Medical Services 
iii) Building Inspections 
iv) Public Works 
v) Police 
vi) Library Board 
vii) Water & Light Utility Commission 
viii) Watertown Humane Society 
ix) Cable Television  

 
 

7) RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 
a) Finance, Insurance & Personnel 

i) May  2022 Financial Statements: General Disbursements $554,009.32; Payroll $78,736.75 & 
Clerk/Treasurer’s Reports [see on municipal website] 

b) Waterloo Utilities 
i) Resolution 2022-19 Review of the Annual Wastewater Treatment Plant Compliance Maintenance Report  
ii) Status and possible action of Industrial Agreements. [NOTE: The City Council may meet in closed session per 

Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public 
funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a 
closed session. Upon concluding a closed session, the Committee will reconvene in open session.] 

 
8) NEW BUSINESS 

a) Class A & B Beer, Liquor & Cider License Applications Along With A Class C Wine Application For The License 
Period 7/1/2022 – 6/30/2023.  Additional license IMart Store.  300 W Madison St. Waterloo 

b) Cigarette License Applications For the License Period 7/1/2022 – 6/30/2023 
 

http://www.waterloowi.us/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82561116265?pwd=Z0UxLzRYbC9HSkJqalFlNE0xNzRiQT09
https://www.waterloowi.us/clerk-treasurer/pages/monthly-financial-statements


 

https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/COUNCIL - 1st and 3rd Thurs/2022-06-16City Council/2022-06-16CityCouncilAgenda.docx 
6/15/2022 12:54 PM 

c) Resolution 2022-22 Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of a $17,114,000 Combined Utility 
Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022A 

d) Waterloo Utilities borrowing with the City for Jefferson St. Project-Bringing this back from the 4/21/2022 meeting for 
further consideration.   

e) Resolution 2022-20 Budget Amendment #1 

f) Resolution 2022-21 Contingency Funds-Parks Sump Pump Invoice 
 
 

9) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

10) ADJOURNMENT 
 

Jeanne Ritter Clerk/Deputy Treasurer       Posted & Emailed: 06/13/2022  

PLEASE NOTE: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above 

meeting(s) to gather information. No action will be taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noticed. Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be 
made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request such services please contact the 
clerk’s office at the above location 



P age 1 of1
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.c om/sites/Fileshares/d ata/C ommon/A GEN D A S _ M IN UTES /2 0 2 2 /C O UN C IL - 1 stand 3 rd Thu rs/2 0 2 2 - 0 6 - 0 2 C ity C ou nc il/2 0 2 2 - 0 6 -
0 2 C ityC ou nc ilM inu tes.d oc x
6 /1 3 /2 0 2 2 6 :2 5 P M

CITY OF WATERLOO COMMON COUNCIL - MEETING MINUTES: June 2, 2022
[a digital recording of this meeting also serves as the official record]

1) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & ROLL CALL. Mayor Quimby called the meeting to order at 7:02
p.m. Alderpersons present: Cummings,A. Kuhl, C. Kuhl, Griffin, Thomas, Weihert and Petts. Alderpersons
attending remotely: none. Absent: none. Others attending remotely or in-person: Police Chief Sorenson;
Treasurer/ Deputy Clerk Tschanz; Utility Supervisor Sorenson; DPW Director Yerges; Clerk Jeanne Ritter and
WLOO videographers. The pledge of allegiance was recited.

2) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: May 19, 2022 [Petts/Cummings] VOICE VOTE: Motion Carried.

3) CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC COMMENT none

4) OLD BUSINESS

5) MEETING SUMMARIES (since last Council meeting)
a) 05/23/2022 Fire Department
b) 05/24/2022 Library Board
c) 05/24/2022 Plan Commission
d) 06/01/2022 Parks Commission
e) 06/02/2022 Public Works & Property Committee
f) 06/02-2022 Public Safety & Health Committee

6) RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS
a) Plan Commission

i) Conditional Use Application Ordinance §385-18 C(3)(a) & §385-8 B (7) Tom Hoesly, For The Property
Located at 825 Waterloo Rd, Waterloo. The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit to allow for a
storage building to be built on the subject parcel. A conditional use permit is required when adding an
additional accessory building exceeding 200 square feet in an Agricultural District being used as a residential
storage building, not for agricultural use. Tax Parcel: #290-0813-0733-000. Also known as 825 Waterloo
Rd.Motion [C. Kuhl/Griffin] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.

b) Public Works & Property Committee
i) Leschinger Street – Semi – traffic using newly constructed street. Motion to allow traffic under 35,000 lbs

and continue to not allow semi traffic. Voice Vote 5-2 Motion Carried.
ii) Resolution 2022-18 Awarding Bid for Mill and Overlay project on Riverside Dr/Minnehaha Lane. Motion to

accept Payne and Dolan bid for Mill and Overlay. $345,750.00 [Weihert/A.Kuhl] VOICE VOTE: Motion
carried.

7) NEW BUSINESS
a) Class A & B Beer, Liquor & Cider License Applications Along With A Class C Wine Application For The

License Period 7/1/2022 – 6/30/2023. Loeder has sold and is withdrawing their application. Motion
[Petts/Cummings] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.

b) Cigarette License Applications For the License Period 7/1/2022 – 6/30/2023 Motion [Petts/Cummings] Motion
carried.

c) Annual Mobile Home Park Licenses For The License Period 7/1/2022 – 6/30/2023. Motion[Weihert/Griffin.
VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.

d) Resolution 2022-17 Authorizing Execution of the Department of Natural Resources Principal Forgiven Financial
Assistance Agreement. Lead grant program. Motion [Weihert/Cummings] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.

8) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

9) ADJOURNMENT [C.Kuhl/Griffin] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.7:25 pm

Attest:
Jeanne Ritter Clerk/Deputy Treasurer





















JOB CHAD RYAN CHRIS TRAVIS 2022 DPW EQUIPMENT TOTAL FUELGPH

POLICE ADM 0 0 0 0 START END TOTAL

FIRE DEPT 0 3.5 1 2.5 EQUIPMENT

MACH/EQUIP 2 33 4 4 END LOADER 544 4143 4149 6 16.12 0.37

GARAGE/SHED 22 3 24.5 38.5 JOHN DEERE TRACTOR 2555 4820 4823 3 12.016 0.25

MEETING/SEMINARS 9 4 1.5 3 WOOD CHIPPER 3041 3054 13 37.39 0.35

STREET REPAIR/MAINTENANCE 22 2 7 2 JOHN DEERE TRACTOR 1025R 221 223 2 78.474 0.78

STREET CLEANING 0 0 0 0 JOHN DEERE X750 0.8 25.3 24.5 78.474 0.78

SNOW & ICE 0 0 0 0 JOHN DEERE X750-1 0.2 35 34.8 78.474 0.78

REG HOURS WACKER ROLLER 426 426 0 0

OT HOURS 2010 INTERNATIONAL TRUCK #1 24365 24369 4 0

STORM SEWER 7 1 2 1 2020 INTERNATIONAL TRUCK #2 5554 5555 1

TRAFFIC CTL 18 0 21 0 #3 0 0 0

BRIDGES/CULVERTS 0 0 0 0 2017 CHEVROLET TRUCK #4 50608 51425 817 56.541 14.45

TREE/BRUSH 0 26 0 24 2018 FREIGHTINER TRUCK #5 11874 11901 27 0

REFUSE COLLECTION 12 4 10 3 2006 ELGIN PELICAN STREET SWEEPER 4.349 43490 43485.65 0

SANITARY SEWER 0 0 0 0 2011 FORD F-550 TRUCK #6 41934 42226 292 79.938 3.65

INSECT CONTROL 0 0 0 0 2015 FREIGHTLINER TRUCK #7 14440 14510 70 0

ANIMAL CONTROL 0 0 0 0 BOBCAT S595 776 796 20 0

CEMETERY 2 8.5 2 10

LIBRARY 0 3 0 3

FIREMAN'S PARKS 37 8 31 10

OTHER PARKS 7 41 4 42

TRAILHEAD 10 8 7 8

CELEB/ENTER 0 4 1 4

WEED CONTROL 9 19 11 9

VAC/HOL/SL 18 8 49 12

TOTAL 175 176 176 176

MAY MONTHLY TIME REPORT MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

MILEAGE/HOURS

































Karl Junginger Memorial Library / Mayor/Council/Board Report - MAY 2022 

MAY MONTHLY STATISTICS JAN FEB MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC 

Library Card Holders 2021 2468 2477 2496 2499 2482 2519 2533 2539 2561 2544 2464 2397

2022 2400 2410 2420 2432 2453

% of Change -2.76% -2.70% -3.04% -2.68% -1.17% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

Checkouts (Circulation) 2021 3263 3312 3601 3425 3352 4483 4826 3764 3475 3499 3245 3194

2022 3920 3624 4192 3486 3361

% of Change 20.13% 9.42% 16.41% 1.78% 0.27% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

eBook/Audio Checkouts 2021 593 607 585 536 562 498 573 665 591 655 568 627

(Circulation) 2022 663 711 705 669 633

% of Change 11.80% 17.13% 20.51% 24.81% 12.63% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

Library Visits 2021 1396 1259 1539 1125 747 1236 1799 1685 1491 850 1422 1497

2022 1462 1584 1820 1710 1627

% of Change 4.73% 25.81% 18.26% 52.00% 117.80% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

Meeting Room Use 2021 1 0 6 5 8 9 3 6 7 2 10 8

2022 10 10 8 8 16

% of Change 900.00% 900.00% 33.33% 60.00% 44.44% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% -100.00% -100.00% 100.00% -100.00%

Public Computer Use 2021 74 92 117 86 87 69 64 70 72 80 84 40

2022 60 73 74 61 57

% of Change -18.92% -20.65% -36.75% -29.07% -136.36% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

WiFi Use 2021 139 166 147 161 154 171 166 159 195 173 182 185

2022 174 189 206 210 216

% of Change 25.18% 13.86% 40.14% 30.43% 40.26% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

Outreach to local 2021 122 88 96 91 111 109 69 92 142 88 86 133

residents -Checkouts 2022 114 90 132 89 155

% of Change -6.56% 2.27% 37.50% -2.20% 151.72% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

PROGRAMS *2022 #'s will include In-Person and Passive programs

Adult  Number of Programs 2021 4 6 4 4 3 6 5 5 6 11 19 11

2022 21 19 18 18 17

% of Change 425.00% 216.67% 350.00% 350.00% 466.67% -100.00% 100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

Adult Attendance 2021 46 44 34 25 28 130 35 77 28 112 107 51

2022 193 114 117 139 126

% of Change 319.57% 159.09% 244.12% 456.00% 350.00% -100.00% 100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

Teen (12-18) 2021 1 1 1 1 1 8 10 0 1 1 1 1

Number of programs 2022 3 2 2 2 1

% of Change 200.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% -100.00% -100.00% #DIV/0! -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

Attendance 2021 20 25 22 22 20 154 21 0 0 0 1 0

2022 39 25 36 24 24

% of Change 95.00% 0.00% 63.64% 9.09% 9.30% -100.00% -100.00% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! -100.00% #DIV/0!

Children's 2021 6 7 9 6 2 19 20 10 9 11 11 8

Number of programs 2022 17 30 16 6 14

% of Change 183.33% 328.57% 77.78% 0.00% 600.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%

Attendance 2021 95 184 257 182 84 1133 973 348 58 112 105 73

2022 307 257 308 255 904

% of Change 223.16% 39.67% 19.84% 40.11% 976.19% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00%



Regular meeting of the Waterloo Water & Light Commission held June 14, 2022  
The meeting was called to order by President Tom Bergan at 7:00pm at the Waterloo Utilities 
office. Present were Commissioners Devin Schumann, Tim Thomas, and Superintendent Barry 
Sorenson.  Absent Vern Butzine and Chuck Wallace. 
 
Minutes 
It was moved by Schumann, seconded by Thomas, to approve the minutes of the May 3, 2022 
meeting.  Motion carried. 
 
Expenditures 
It was moved by Thomas, seconded by Schumann, to approve the payment of the May bills as 
presented.  Motion carried. 
 
Citizen Input 
None. 
 
WWTP Industrial Contracts 
It was moved by Thomas, seconded by Schumann, to move to closed session. It was moved by 
Thomas, seconded by Schumann, to return to open session. It was moved by Thomas, seconded by 
Bergan, to recommend the proposed industrial agreements and the Van Holten’s Amendment No. 1, 
revising the upgrade share, to the City Council contingent upon execution by each industry by no 
later than June 29, 2022. Motion carried. 
 
CMAR 
It was moved by Bergan, seconded by Schumann, to recommend CMAR approval to City Council.   
Motion carried. 
 
Project updates 
Barry discussed the 5 year plan for electric projects.  
 
It was moved by Thomas, seconded by Schumann, to adjourn. Motion carried.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tim Thomas 
Secretary 



L istofB ills

A P G ofS ou thern W is c ons in 20 7 . 97 N A P A A u to P arts 13. 99

A q u aFix 550 . 0 0 N orthC entralL ab 1 , 37 2 . 13

A xley B rynels on L L P 335. 0 0 N orthern L ake S ervic e 247 . 16

B akerTilly 23, 430 . 8 4 P aymentS ervic e N etwork 49. 40

B & B Trans former 30 , 1 8 0 . 0 0 P ig 15. 8 5

B ord erS tates 2 , 47 7 . 59 P ayroll 7 9, 630 . 8 1

B P C red itC ard C enter 1 , 60 2 . 8 0 P ortland S anitary D is tric t 9, 50 6. 43

C ity ofW aterloo Treas u rer 49, 513. 7 4 Res c o 4, 8 41 . 54

C harterC ommu nic ations 244. 96 Ric hterH eating & A C 1 , 321 . 8 1

B rad /C hris tina D egler 267 . 66 S EERA 1 , 2 8 8 . 7 8

D ivers e Elec tric L L C 7 8 5. 91 S olenis L L C 4, 7 8 8 . 0 1

D N R O peratorC ertific ation 7 0 . 0 0 S u periorC hemic alC orp 240 . 7 6

D N R EnvironmentalFees 3, 0 0 4. 2 0 The C u tting Ed ge 37 5. 0 0

F& M B ank 20 1 . 33 TotalEnergy S ys tems 1 , 395. 49

Embroid ery P rofes s ionals 197 . 29 Town & C ou ntry Engineering 58 , 2 7 4. 30

EnvironmentalC ons u lting & Tes ting 1 , 450 . 0 0 T W ellman H omes 63. 68

Els terS olu tions 98 , 7 8 4. 0 0 US A B lu e B ook 438 . 90

Fors terElec tric alEngineering 10 , 433. 13 United L iq u id W as te Rec yc ling 1 , 97 2 . 16

Frontier 38 6. 68 US C ellu lar 250 . 7 5

GFC L eas ing 94. 0 0 Unifirs tC orp 30 5. 90

H awkins 1 , 7 44. 29 US A B lu e B ook 542 . 7 4

H owie's H ard ware 1 , 37 3. 91 UP S 298 . 8 9

Infos end 8 97 . 59 Vis a 7 96. 61

Inkworks 1 7 4. 90 W aterloo B u ild ing C enter 7 0 . 0 0

Jonas O ffic e P rod u c ts 136. 66 W aterloo Utilities 13, 0 53. 30

B rooke L aws on 163. 0 1 W E Energies 1 , 265. 2 8

M id S tate Eq u ipment 48 . 0 7 W is c ons in D ept. ofRevenu e 13, 143. 8 2

M u lc ahy S haw W aterInc 546. 23 W is c ons in S tate L ab 26. 0 0

W P P IEnergy 20 7 , 633. 97

TotalD is bu rs ements $632 , 525. 22

C hec king A c c ou nt#102-613:

B alanc e 4/30 /22 $43, 0 47 . 7 9

Trans fer 58 9, 40 9. 0 0

D is bu rs ements (424, 0 8 9. 92)

Interes t 8 . 99

S ervic e C harge (21 . 61)

B alanc e 5/31/22 $20 8 , 354. 25

W W TP A c c ou nt#374-547 (D NR Replac em entFu nd )

B alanc e 4/30 /22 $8 6, 7 0 2 . 39

D epos it

Trans ferforExpens es

Interes t 11 . 40

B alanc e 5/31/22 $8 6, 7 13. 7 9

D ebtS ervic e A c c ou nt#3015323:

B alanc e 4/30 /22 $259, 7 68 . 7 1

D epos it 58 , 650 . 0 0

B ond P ayment

Interes t 8 1 . 8 2
B alanc e 5/31/22 $31 8 , 50 0 . 53

M oney M arketA c c ou nt#110-832:

B alanc e 4/30 /22 322 , 469. 49

D epos its 530 , 37 0 . 52

Trans fer (558 , 650 . 0 0 )

D is bu rs ements (20 7 , 633. 97 )

Interes t 1 7 2 . 13

S ervic e C harge (229. 12)
B alanc e 5/31/22 $8 6, 499. 0 5

Transportation Fu nd

B alanc e 4/30 /22 $95, 0 52 . 99

Trans fer
B alanc e 5/31/22 $95, 0 52 . 99

C onstru c tion A c c ou nt:

B alanc e 4/30 /22 413, 331 . 36

Trans ferred in

C ons tru c tion P ayment (8 9, 40 9. 0 0 )
B alanc e 5/31/22 $323, 922 . 36

A vestarC D #3596 (B ond Reserve):

B alanc e 4/30 /22 311 , 57 3. 0 9

Interes t

Trans ferred in
B alanc e 5/31/22 $311 , 57 3. 0 9

C D #613386 (B ond Reserve):

B alanc e 4/30 /22 21 7 , 8 63. 8 6

Interes t
B alanc e 5/31/22 $21 7 , 8 63. 8 6

W W TP C D #2875 (D NR Replac em entFu nd ):

B alanc e 4/30 /22 $464, 612 . 8 7

Interes t

Trans fer
B alanc e 5/31/22 $464, 612 . 8 7







WLOO for the month of May.  The station maintained our monthly obligation for recording city and 
school board meetings, along with the programming of our cable channels 991/992.  Signal quality for 
991/992 has been variable.  Better signal quality requires cooperation from Spectrum, which we still 
aren't getting. 
There was a lack of responses to multiple avenues of advertising for videographers, which included 
notices on the City Website and flyers posted at Waterloo High School. 
 
WLOO Facebook page has been reactivated and we have been getting great response from the 
community about our post.  We post updates on new construction, city events, school activities, and we 
plan to add more of what the city has to offer in the future.   
 
I attended the WMC Conference which was a valuable experience.  It was great to see all the awesome 
creative ways that other cities utilize their local media station services.  Lots of informative video 
projects as well as video projects that promote local businesses were awarded.  
 
WLOO visited the Sun Prairie station, and the staff was very welcoming and helpful.  They shared 
fundraising strategies and offered help if ever needed.  We were very impressed with how many 
avenues they have available to shine a light on all the great things going on in their city.   They talked 
about how important community involvement is to their success and the success of their city.  They 
were able to achieve partnerships with schools to create programs for kids and local banks that wanted 
the community to know that they were there to help create opportunity and success in the 
community.  This is a good example of the next stage WLOO will strive to achieve.   
 
WLOO received 3 videographer and student trainee applications; one has been interviewed.  We hired 
Michael Bloomber.   Arrangements were made with WHS Counselor Tyler Kopplin to film and Livestream 
WHS Commencement ceremonies and the filming was a success. You can find the replay on our 
YouTube channel (WLOO CATV). 
 
The crew filmed and live streamed high school baseball and home talent games at fireman's park.  
 
The new computer is working very well. It now takes a third of the time to do studio production tasks, 
which really helps to increase efficiency. 
 
WLOO is focusing on developing a strong advertising and sponsorship base.  We are working with Chad 
Teubert to design official station shirts/hats so the public can easily identify employees. 
 
Progress has been made toward the important station goal of increasing community involvement by 
reaching out to the Waterloo District Summer School Coordinator and the KJML adult services librarian 
which we hope to collaborate with soon. 
 























































 

Page 1 of 1 
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/RESOLUTIONS/2022 RESOLUTIONS/A - Drafting/2022-19 CMAR/2022-19 2021 CMAR.docx 

 

                 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION #2022-19 
 

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT  
COMPLIANCE MAINTENANCE REPORT 

 
The Common Council of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin does hereby resolve as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, the Waterloo Water & Light Commission and the City of Waterloo Common Council have 
reviewed the annual Wastewater Treatment Plant Compliance Maintenance Report, which accompanies this 
resolution; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Waterloo Common Council informs the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources that appropriate actions will continue to be taken to maintain and exceed 
compliance measures. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of June 2022. 
 
      City of Waterloo 
 
 

Signed: _____________________________ 
         Jenifer Quimby, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
Jeanne Ritter 
Clerk/DeputyTreasurer 
 
 
 
SPONSOR(S) – Utility Superintendent & Utility Commission 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.waterloowi.us/




QB\73881405.173881405.2

RESOLUTION NO. ____________2022-22

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE
AND SALE OF A $17,114,000 TAXABLE

COMBINED UTILITY REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 2022A

WHEREAS, the City of Waterloo, Jefferson County, Wisconsin (the "City") now owns
and operates and has for many years owned and operated a combined water, electric and
sewerage utility, a public utility (said utility and all properties of every nature in connection with
said utility now or hereafter owned by the City, including all improvements and extensions
thereto, all real and personal property of every nature comprising part of and used or useful in
connection therewith, and all appurtenances, contracts, leases, franchises and other intangibles,
are hereinafter referred to collectively as the "System");

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Section 66.0621, Wisconsin Statutes (the "Act"),
any municipality in the State of Wisconsin may, by action of its governing body, provide for
purchasing, acquiring, constructing, extending, adding to, improving, controlling, conducting,
operating or managing a public utility such as the System from the proceeds of bonds, which
bonds are to be payable only from all monies received from any source by such utility (the
"Revenues");

WHEREAS, to adequately meet the needs of the City and the residents thereof, certain
improvements, additions, and extensions to and acquisitions for the System are necessary,
including a wastewater treatment facility upgrade project that includes renovation of the
administration building, a new waste receiving station, a new headworks building, new
biological phosphorus tanks, a new final clarifier, renovation of the service building, installations
of a new UV disinfection system and a complete overhaul of the digestor (collectively, the
"Project");

WHEREAS, for the purpose of permanently financing the Project, including paying
interest and legal, financing and other professional fees, the City intends by subsequent
resolution (the "Bond Resolution") of the Common Council to authorize the issuance and sale of
revenue bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Act (the "Bonds") to the United States of
America, acting through Rural Development, United States Department of Agriculture, payable
solely from Revenues of the System deposited in the Special Redemption Fund provided for
herein;

WHEREAS, the Bonds have not yet been issued or sold and will be issued and sold only
after completion of the Project;

WHEREAS, municipalities are authorized by the provisions of Section 66.0621(4)(L),
Wisconsin Statutes, to issue bond anticipation notes in anticipation of receiving the proceeds
from the issuance and sale of revenue bonds;

WHEREAS, contracts are to be let for the Project and the financial officer of the City has
heretofore certified to the Common Council that proceeds of a bond anticipation note shall be
required for the payment of said contracts, as well as other costs including paying interest and
legal, financing and other professional fees;



QB\73881405.173881405.2

2

WHEREAS, it is the finding of the Common Council that it is necessary, desirable and in
the best interest of the City to authorize the issuance and sale of a revenue bond anticipation note
pursuant to Section 66.0621(4)(L), Wisconsin Statutes, (the "Note") in anticipation of the
issuance and sale of the Bonds, to pay the cost of the Project;

WHEREAS, due to certain provisions contained in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, it is necessary to issue such Note on a taxable rather than tax-exempt basis;

WHEREAS pursuant to a resolution adopted on October 4, 2012 (the "2012 Resolution"),
the City has heretofore issued its Combined Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2012B, dated
November 6, 2012 (the "2012 Bonds"), which bonds are payable from the Revenues of the
System;

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution adopted on December 5, 2013 (the "2013
Resolution"), the City has heretofore issued its Combined Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2013A, dated December 30, 2013 (the "2013 Bonds"), which bonds are payable from the
Revenues of the System on a parity with the 2012 Bonds;

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution adopted on October 20, 2016 (the "2016
Resolution"), the City has heretofore issued its Combined Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A,
dated November 15, 2016 (the "2016 Bonds"), which bonds are payable from the Revenues of
the System on a parity with the 2012 Bonds and the 2013 Bonds;

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution adopted on August 20, 2020 (the "2020
Resolution"), the City has heretofore issued its Combined Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020D,
dated September 10, 2020 (the "2020 Bonds"), which bonds are payable from the Revenues of
the System on a parity with the 2012 Bonds, the 2013 Bonds and the 2016 Bonds (hereinafter the
2012 Bonds, the 2013 Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and the 2020 Bonds shall be referred to
collectively as the "Prior Bonds");

WHEREAS, the City also has outstanding its Combined Utility Revenue Bonds, Series
2013, dated March 27, 2013 (the "Clean Water Fund Bonds") issued pursuant to a resolution
adopted on March 7, 2013 (the "Clean Water Fund Bond Resolution"), which bonds are payable
from the Revenues of the System on a basis junior and subordinate to the Prior Bonds;

WHEREAS, the Note shall be issued on a basis junior and subordinate to the Prior Bonds
and the Clean Water Fund Bonds with respect to the pledge of Revenues;

WHEREAS, other than the Prior Bonds and the Clean Water Fund Bonds, no bonds or
obligations payable from the Revenues of the System are now outstanding; and

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2022, the Common Council adopted a resolution (the "May
Resolution") authorizing the issuance of the Note to The Huntington National Bank; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds that it is in the best interest of the City to
permit the City to draw funds under the Note and pay interest on a variable rate versus a fixed
rate basis as provided for in this Resolution and the Proposal; and



QB\73881405.173881405.2

3

WHEREAS, it is the finding of the Common Council that it is necessary, desirable and in
the best interest of the City to sell the Note to The Huntington National Bank (the "Purchaser"),
pursuant to the Term Sheet attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this
reference (the "Proposal").  Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers"), as municipal advisor to the
City, has recommended that the City accept the proposal.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that:

Section 1.  Combined Utility Revenue Bonds.  The City hereby declares its intention and
covenants to issue the Bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Act in an amount sufficient to
retire the Note and pay the cost of interest and legal, financing and other professional fees in
connection therewith.  The Bonds will be authorized by the Bond Resolution.

Section 2.  Definitions.  In addition to the words defined elsewhere in this Resolution, the
following words shall have the following meanings unless the context or use indicates another or
different meaning or intent:

"SOFR Daily Floating Rate" means, for any day (a "SOFR Rate Day"), a rate per annum
equal to the greater of (a) SOFR for the day (such day, the "SOFR Determination Date") that is
five (5) U.S. Government Securities Business Days prior to (i) if such SOFR Rate Day is a U.S.
Government Securities Business Day, such SOFR Rate Day, or (ii) if such SOFR Rate Day is not
a U.S. Government Securities Business Day, the U.S. Government Securities Business Day
immediately preceding such SOFR Rate Day, in each case, as such SOFR is published by the
SOFR Administrator on the SOFR Administrator's Website, and (b) 0%. If by 5:00 pm (New
York City time) on the second (2nd) U.S. Government Securities Business Day immediately
following any SOFR Determination Date, the SOFR in respect of such SOFR Determination
Date has not been published on the SOFR Administrator's Website, then the SOFR for such
SOFR Determination Date will be SOFR as published in respect of the first preceding U,S.
Government Securities Business Day for which such SOFR determined pursuant to this sentence
shall be utilized for purposes of calculation of the SOFR Daily Floating Rate for no more than
five (5) consecutive SOFR Rate Days. Any change in the SOFR Daily Floating Rate due to a
change in SOFR shall be effective from and including the effective date of such a change in
SOFR without notice to the City.

"30/360 Day Basis" means on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve (12)
months of thirty (30) days each.

"SOFR" means a rate equal to the secured overnight financing rate as administered by the
SOFR Administrator.

"SOFR Administrator" means the Federal Reserve Bank of New York (or a successor
administrator of the secured overnight financing rate).

"SOFR Administrator Website" means the website of the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York, currently at http://www.newyorkfed.org, or any successor source for the overnight secured
financing rate identified as such by the SOFR Administrator from time to time.



QB\73881405.173881405.2

4

"US Government Securities Business Day" means any day except (a) a Saturday (b) a
Sunday or (c) a day on which the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association
recommends that the fixed income departments of its members be closed for the entire day for
purposed of trading in United States government securities.

Section 3.  Authorization and Sale of the Note.  In anticipation of the sale of the Bonds,
for the public purpose of paying the cost of the Project including paying interest, legal, financing
and other professional fees in connection therewith, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section
66.0621(4)(L), Wisconsin Statutes, the principal sum of up to SEVENTEEN MILLION ONE
HUNDRED FOURTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($17,114,000) from the Purchaser.  To
evidence the obligation of the City, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered
and directed to make, execute, issue and sell to the Purchaser for, on behalf of and in the name of
the City, the Note in the principal amount of SEVENTEEN MILLION ONE HUNDRED
FOURTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($17,114,000) for a purchase price equal to the principal
amount ofdrawn under the Note.  A member of the Waterloo Water and Light Commission is
hereby authorized to execute the Proposal.

Section 34.  Terms of the Note.  The Note shall be designated "Taxable Combined Utility
Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022A"; shall be issued in the principal amount of
$17,114,000; shall be dated its date of issuance; shall be in the denomination of $100,000 or
more; shall be initially numbered R-1; and shall mature on June 30, 2025 (the "Maturity Date").
The Note shall bear interest at aPrincipal of the Note may be drawn by the City as needed up to
the full amount of the Note, or so much thereof as the City may require; provided that a
minimum of $1,000,000 will be drawn at the Closing (as defined in Section 13).  The Note shall
bear interest on the amount of principal drawn on the Note from the date drawn at an interest rate
per annum equal to 3.66% per annum(A) the product of the sum of (1) the SOFR Daily Floating
Rate, plus (2) 134 basis points (1.34%) or (B) any Successor Rate, however, at no time shall the
rate exceed 10%.  This interest rate will be adjusted on the first U.S. Government Securities
Business Day of each month, and interest will be calculated on a 30/360 Day Basis. Interest on
the Note shall be payable semi-annually on January 1 and July 1, commencing on January 1,
2023.  The final interest payment shall come due on the Maturity Date.  The amounts of principal
and interest due on the Note are set forth in the schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B and
incorporated herein by this reference.  Interest shall be computed on

If (a) the Purchaser shall determine that the SOFR Daily Floating Rate cannot be
determined pursuant to the definition thereof, (b) such rate is not available at such time for any
reason, or (c) the Purchaser makes the determination to incorporate or adopt a new interest rate
to replace the SOFR Daily Floating Rate in credit agreements, then the Purchaser may replace
the SOFR Daily Floating Rate with an alternate interest rate and adjustment, if applicable, as
reasonably selected by the Purchaser and the City, giving due consideration to any evolving or
then existing conventions for such interest rate and adjustment (any such successor interest rate,
as adjusted, the "Successor Rate"); provided, that neither party may unreasonably withhold their
consent to such Successor Rate. If a Successor Rate cannot be agreed upon within 10 Business
Days (or such shorter time period necessary to ensure a Successor Rate is available) of the
occurrence of the events described in the preceding sentence, the Successor Rate shall be the "12
Month Swap Interest Rate" defined as the basisproduct of (a 360-day year of twelve 30-day



QB\73881405.173881405.2

5

months) the sum of (i) the rate shown for USD Rates 1100 at
http://www.theice.marketdata/reports/180 for a 1 year period, plus (ii) a spread that will maintain
the economics of the Purchaser's initial interest rate. In connection with the implementation of
the Successor Rate, the City and the Purchaser agree that the Purchaser has the right, from time
to time, in good faith to make any conforming, technical, administrative or operational changes
as may be appropriate to reflect the adoption and administration thereof.

Section 45.  Redemption Provisions.  The Note shall be subject to redemption prior to
maturity, in whole, but not in part, at the option of the City, on or after June 30, 2024 at the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.  Unless waived by the
Purchaser, the City shall provide the Purchaser with 30 days' notice prior to any early
redemption.

Section 56.  Form of the Note.  The Note shall be issued in registered form and shall be
executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit CB and incorporated
herein by this reference.

Section 67.  Security.  The Note shall in no event be a general obligation of the City nor a
charge against its general credit or taxing power.  No lien is created upon the System or any other
property of the City as a result of the issuance of the Note.  The Note shall be payable only from
(a) any proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Note set aside for payment of interest on the
Note as it becomes due; (b) proceeds to be derived from the issuance and sale of the Bonds,
which proceeds are hereby declared to constitute a special trust fund, hereby created and
established, to be held by the City Clerk and expended solely for the payment of the principal of
and interest on the Note; and (c) a pledge of the Revenues which have been deposited in the
Special Redemption Fund continued below, on a basis junior and subordinate to the
pledgespledge granted to the owners of the Prior Bonds, the Clean Water Fund Bonds and any
additional bonds issued on a parity with the Prior Bonds or the Clean Water Fund Bonds.

It is the express intent and determination of the Common Council that the amounts
transferred from the Revenue Fund and deposited in the Special Redemption Fund shall be
sufficient in any event to pay the interest on, first, the Prior Bonds and any additional bonds
issued on a parity with the Prior Bonds, second, the Clean Water Fund Bonds and any additional
bonds issued on a parity with the Clean Water Fund Bonds, and third, the Note as the same
accrues and the principal thereof (exclusive of principal of the Note to be paid from proceeds of
the Bonds) as the same matures.  The Revenues deposited in the Special Redemption Fund are
hereby pledged to the payment of the Note to the extent there are sufficient funds in the Special
Redemption Fund to first pay principal of and interest on the Prior Bonds, the Clean Water Fund
Bonds and any additional bonds issued on a parity with the Prior Bonds or the Clean Water Fund
Bonds.

As authorized and permitted by Section 66.0621(4)(L)6, Wisconsin Statutes, in the event
such monies are not sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Note when due, if
necessary, the City will pay such deficiency out of its annual general tax levy or other available
funds of the City; provided, however, that any such payment shall be subject to annual budgetary
appropriations therefor and any applicable levy limits; and provided further, that neither this
Resolution nor any such payment shall be construed as constituting an obligation of the City to
make any such appropriation or any further payments.



QB\73881405.173881405.2

6

Section 78.  Funds and Accounts.  In accordance with the Act, for the purpose of the
application and proper allocation of the Revenues of the System, and to secure the payment of
the principal of and interest on, first, the Prior Bonds and any bonds issued on a parity with the
Prior Bonds, second, the Clean Water Fund Bonds and any bonds issued on a parity with the
Clean Water Fund Bonds, and, third, on the Note, certain funds of the System heretofore have
been created, established and continued by the 2012 Resolution, the 2013 Resolution, the 2016
Resolution, the 2020 Resolution and the Clean Water Fund Resolution (collectively, the "Prior
Resolutions"), which shall be used solely for the purposes set forth in the Prior Resolutions.
Such funds include the Revenue Fund, the Operation and Maintenance Fund, the Special
Redemption Fund (including the Reserve Account) and the Surplus Fund.  Revenues of the
System shall be deposited into the Special Redemption Fund for payment of principal and
interest on the Note (exclusive of such amounts expected to be paid with proceeds of the Bonds)
as if bonds had been issued rather than the Note, provided, however, that such payments shall be
junior and subordinate to the Prior Bonds, the Clean Water Fund Bonds and any bonds issued on
a parity with the Prior Bonds or the Clean Water Fund Bonds.

Section 89.  Service to the City.  The reasonable cost and value of services rendered to
the City by the System by furnishing services for public purposes, shall be charged against the
City and shall be paid by it in installments as the service accrues, out of the current revenues of
the City collected or in the process of collection, exclusive of the Revenues derived from the
System, and out of the tax levy of the City made by it to raise money to meet its necessary
current expenses.  However, such payment out of the tax levy shall be subject to (a) annual
appropriations therefor (b) approval by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission, or successor,
and (c) any applicable levy limitations; but neither this Resolution nor such payment shall be
construed as constituting an obligation of the City to make any such appropriation over and
above the reasonable cost and value of services rendered to the City and its inhabitants or make
any subsequent payment over and above such reasonable cost and value.  Such compensation for
such service rendered to the City shall, in the manner hereinabove provided, be paid into the
funds referred to in Section 78.

Section 910.  Covenants of the City.  The City hereby covenants with the owners of the
Note that:

(a) It shall issue the Bonds as soon as practicable in an amount sufficient to retire the
Note;

(b) It shall segregate the proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds into a special
trust fund herein created and established and shall permit such special trust fund to be used for
no purpose other than the payment of the principal of and interest on the Note until paid.  After
the payment of principal of and interest on the Note in full, said special trust fund may be used
for such other purposes as the Common Council may direct in accordance with law;

(c) It shall faithfully and punctually perform all duties with reference to the System
required by the Constitution and Statutes of the State of Wisconsin, including lawfully
establishing reasonable and sufficient rates for services rendered by the System and collecting,
depositing, applying and segregating the Revenues of the System to the respective funds and
accounts provided for in Section 78;

(d) It will cause the Project to be completed as expeditiously as reasonably possible;



QB\73881405.173881405.2

7

(e) It will not sell, lease, or in any manner dispose of the System, including any part
thereof or any additions or extensions that may be made part thereto, except that the City shall
have the right to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any property of the System found by the
Common Council to be neither necessary nor useful in the operation of the System, provided the
proceeds received from such sale, lease or disposal shall be paid into the Special Redemption
Fund or applied to the acquisition or construction of capital facilities for use in the normal
operation of the System, and such payment shall not reduce the amounts otherwise required to be
paid into the Special Redemption Fund;

(f) It will pay or cause to be paid all lawful taxes, assessments, governmental
charges, and claims for labor, materials or supplies which if unpaid could become a lien upon the
System or the Revenues or could impair the security of the Note or the Bonds;

(g) It will maintain the System in reasonably good condition, will operate the System,
and will establish, charge and collect such lawfully established rates and charges for the service
rendered by the System, so that the amount of the Revenues of the System herein agreed to be set
aside to provide for payment of the Prior Bonds, the Clean Water Fund Bonds, any bonds issued
on a parity with the Prior Bonds or the Clean Water Fund Bonds and the Note (exclusive of
principal of the Note to be paid with proceeds of its Bonds) and the interest thereon as the same
becomes due and payable will be sufficient for that purpose; and

(h) The Note is issued for the purposes for which the City is authorized to issue
revenue bonds and for which the Bonds shall be issued.

Section 1011.  Application of Proceeds; Improvement Fund.  All accrued interest from
the sale of the Note shall be deposited in the Special Redemption Fund.  The remaining proceeds
of the Note shall be deposited in a special fund hereby designated as "Combined Utility
Improvement Fund."  Said Improvement Fund shall be adequately secured and shall be used
solely for the purpose of paying the cost of the Project and the cost of interest and legal,
financing and other professional fees.  Any balance remaining in said Improvement Fund after
paying said costs shall be applied toward the payment of principal of and interest on the Note.

Section 1112.  Parity Bonds.  Bonds payable out of the Revenues of the System on a
parity with the Prior Bonds or the Clean Water Fund Bonds ("Parity Bonds") may be issued in
such manner as to enjoy priority over the Note; provided such Parity Bonds meet the conditions
established in the Prior Resolutions.

Section 1213.  Execution of the Note; Closing; Professional Services.  The Note shall be
issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of
the Mayor and City Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed
with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof and delivered to the Purchaser
upon payment to the City of the purchase price of the Note, plus accrued interest to the date of
delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Note may
be imprinted on the Note in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the City has
contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Note, at least one of the signatures appearing on
the Note shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the officers whose signatures
appear on the Note shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such signatures shall,
nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they had remained in



QB\73881405.173881405.2

8

office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts
and execute and deliver the Note and all such documents, certificates and acknowledgements as
may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The City hereby authorizes the
officers and agents of the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and contracts in
conjunction with the Note, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for legal, trust,
fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services.  Any such
contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Note is hereby ratified
and approved in all respects.

Section 1314.  Payment of the Note; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the
Note shall be paid by the City Clerk or City Treasurer (the "Fiscal Agent").

Section 1415.  Payment of Issuance Expenses.  The City authorizes the Purchaser to
forward the proceeds of the Note in an amount allocable to the payment of issuance expenses to
a financial institution selected by Ehlers at Closing for further distribution as directed by Ehlers.

Section 1516.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Note.  The City shall cause books
for the registration and for the transfer of the Note to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The person in
whose name the Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner
thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on the Note shall be made
only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy
and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

The Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Note at
the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such
transfer, the Mayor and City Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or
transferees a new Note or Notes of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the
Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No registration
shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Notes surrendered for transfer.

The City shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Mayor and City Clerk are
authorized to execute any new Note or Notes necessary to effect any such transfer.

Section 1617.  Record Date.  The fifteenth day of each calendar month next preceding the
interest payment date, except the last interest payment date, shall be the record date for the Note
(the "Record Date").  Payment of interest on the Note on the interest payment date shall be made
to the registered owners of the Note as they appear on the registration book of the City at the
close of business on the Record Date.

Section 1718.  Record Book.  The City Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of
proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct
statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the
Note in the Record Book.



QB\73881405.173881405.2

9

Section 19.  Rescind and Replace May Resolution.  The Common Council hereby
rescinds the May Resolution and only this Resolution shall be in effect with respect to the Note.

Section 1820.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All ordinances and
resolutions (other than the Prior Resolutions) or orders, or parts thereof heretofore enacted,
adopted or entered, in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution, are hereby repealed and
this Resolution shall be in effect from and after its passage.  In case of any conflict between this
Resolution and the Prior Resolutions, the Prior Resolutions shall control so long as any Prior
Bonds or Clean Water Fund Bonds authorized by such resolutions are outstanding.  In the event
that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, such
illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take
effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law.

Adopted, approved and recorded May 19June 16, 2022.

Jenifer Quimby
Mayor

Attest:

Jeanne Ritter
City Clerk  (SEAL)



QB\73881405.173881405.2

EXHIBIT A

Proposal

(See Attached)



QB\73881405.173881405.2

EXHIBIT B

Debt Service Schedule

(See Attached)



QB\73881405.173881405.2

June 30, 2022 As Provided Herein

ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE:

EXHIBIT CB

(Form of Note)

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS

JEFFERSON COUNTY
NO. R-1 CITY OF WATERLOO $17,114,000

TAXABLE COMBINED UTILITY REVENUE
BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 2022A

MATURITY DATE: ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE:

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2022 3.66%

INTEREST RATE:

REGISTERED OWNER: THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: SEVENTEEN MILLION ONE HUNDRED FOURTEEN
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($17,114,000)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the City of Waterloo, Jefferson County, Wisconsin (the
"City"), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Registered Owner
identified above (or to registered assigns) (the "Registered Owner") solely from the funds
hereinafter specified, on the maturity date identified above (the "Maturity Date"), the principal
amount identified aboveas shall have been drawn hereunder, and to pay interest thereon at the
rate of interest per annum identified abovedescribed below (but only on such amounts as shall
have been drawn hereunder from the dates such amounts are drawn), all subject to the provisions
set forth herein regarding redemption prior to maturity.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually
on January 1 and July 1, commencing on January 1, 2023.  The final payment of interest shall be
due at maturity or early redemption.  Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of
twelve 30-day months.  Both the principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the
Registered Owner in lawful money of the United States. Defined terms used but not defined
herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Resolution (defined below).

The Note shall bear interest on the amount of principal drawn on the Note from the date
drawn at an interest rate per annum equal to (A) the product of the sum of (1) the SOFR Daily
Floating Rate, plus (2) 134 basis points (1.34%) or (B) any Successor Rate, however, at no time
shall the rate exceed 10%.  This interest rate will be adjusted on the first U.S. Government
Securities Business Day of each month, and interest will be calculated on a 30/360 Day Basis.

If (a) the Registered Owner shall determine that the SOFR Daily Floating Rate cannot be
determined pursuant to the definition thereof, (b) such rate is not available at such time for any
reason, or (c) the Registered Owner makes the determination to incorporate or adopt a new

June 30, 2025

MATURITY DATE:



QB\73881405.173881405.2

2

interest rate to replace the SOFR Daily Floating Rate in credit agreements, then the Registered
Owner may replace the SOFR Daily Floating Rate with an alternate interest rate and adjustment,
if applicable, as reasonably selected by the Registered Owner and the City, giving due
consideration to any evolving or then existing conventions for such interest rate and adjustment
(any such successor interest rate, as adjusted, the "Successor Rate"); provided, that neither party
may unreasonably withhold their consent to such Successor Rate. If a Successor Rate cannot be
agreed upon within 10 Business Days (or such shorter time period necessary to ensure a
Successor Rate is available) of the occurrence of the events described in the preceding sentence,
the Successor Rate shall be the "12 Month Swap Interest Rate" defined as the product of (a) the
sum of (i) the rate shown for USD Rates 1100 at http://www.theice.marketdata/reports/180 for a
1 year period, plus (ii) a spread that will maintain the economics of the Registered Owner's initial
interest rate. In connection with the implementation of the Successor Rate, the City and the
Registered Owner agree that the Registered Owner has the right, from time to time, in good faith
to make any conforming, technical, administrative or operational changes as may be appropriate
to reflect the adoption and administration thereof.

Payments of interest hereon shall be made to the Registered Owner hereof who shall
appear on the registration books of the City maintained by the City Clerk or City Treasurer (the
"Fiscal Agent") at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding a
payment date, except the last interest payment date (the "Record Date") at its address as it
appears on such registration books or at such other address as may be furnished in writing by the
Registered Owner to the Fiscal Agent.  Principal shall be payable only upon presentation and
surrender of this Note at the office of the Fiscal Agent.

This Note is issued by the City pursuant to the provisions of Section 66.0621(4)(L),
Wisconsin Statutes, for the public purpose of paying the cost of improvements, additions and
extensions to the City's Combined Utility System including a wastewater treatment facility
upgrade project that includes renovation of the administration building, a new waste receiving
station, a new headworks building, new biological phosphorus tanks, a new final clarifier,
renovation of the service building, installations of a new UV disinfection system and a complete
overhaul of the digestor, all as authorized by a resolution of the Common Council duly adopted
by said governing body at a meeting held on May 19June 16, 2022 (the "Resolution").  The
Resolution is recorded in the official minutes of the Common Council for said date.

In the Resolution, the Common Council declared its intention and covenanted to issue
revenue bonds (the "Bonds") for the purpose of retiring this Note.  The Note is issued to
anticipate the sale of the Bonds.

The Note is payable only from:

1) any proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Note set aside for payment of
interest on the Note;

2) the proceeds derived from the issuance and sale of the Bonds, which shall be set
aside as a special trust fund for that purpose; and



QB\73881405.173881405.2

3

3) a pledge of the income and revenues of the City's Combined Utility System (the
"System") which have been deposited in the Special Redemption Fund on a basis
junior and subordinate to the pledge granted to the owners of the City's Combined
Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2012B, dated November 6, 2012, Combined Utility
Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, dated March 27, 2013, Combined Utility Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A, dated December 30, 2013, Combined Utility
Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A, dated November 15, 2016, Combined Utility
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020D, dated September 10, 2020 and any bonds issued
on a parity with such bonds.

THE NOTE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY WITHIN
THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY LIMITATION OR
PROVISION.  NO LIEN IS CREATED UPON THE SYSTEM OR ANY OTHER
PROPERTY OF THE CITY AS A RESULT OF THE ISSUANCE OF THE NOTE.

The Note is subject to redemption prior to maturity, in whole, but not in part, at the
option of the City, on or after June 30, 2024 at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest
to the date of redemption

In the event the Note is redeemed prior to maturity, unless waived by the Registered
Owner, official notice of the redemption will be given not less than thirty (30) days prior to the
redemption date.  Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to
have been duly given, whether or not the Registered Owner receives the notice.  The Note shall
cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date, provided that federal or other
immediately available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit with the Registered
Owner at that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Note shall no longer be
deemed to be outstanding.

The Note is issued in registered form in the denomination of $100,000 or more (exclusive
of the initial draw(s) under the Note which may be in an amount less than $100,000).  This Note
may be exchanged at the office of the Fiscal Agent for a like aggregate principal amount of
Notes of the same maturity in other authorized denominations.

This Note is transferable by a written assignment duly executed by the Registered Owner
hereof or by such owner's duly authorized legal representative.  Upon such transfer a new
registered Note, in authorized denomination or denominations and in the same aggregate
principal amount, shall be issued to the transferee in exchange hereof.

The City may deem and treat the Registered Owner hereof as the absolute owner hereof
for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof, premium, if any,
hereon and interest due hereon and for all other purposes, and the City shall not be affected by
notice to the contrary.

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to
exist, happen, and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note have existed, have
happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law.  The City
has covenanted to issue and sell the Bonds, the sale of which this Note anticipates, as soon as



QB\73881405.173881405.2

4

practicable and to set aside the proceeds of the Bonds into a special trust fund for the payment of
the principal of and interest on this Note.



QB\73881405.173881405.2

5

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Waterloo, Jefferson County, Wisconsin, by its
governing body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or
facsimile signatures of its duly qualified Mayor and City Clerk; and to be sealed with its official
or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above.

CITY OF WATERLOO,
JEFFERSON COUNTY, WISCONSIN

By:
Jenifer Quimby
Mayor

(SEAL)

By:
Jeanne Ritter
City Clerk



QB\73881405.173881405.2

6

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto
____________________________________________________________________________
                                               (Name and Address of Assignee)

____________________________________________________________________________
(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee)

the within Note and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Note on
the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:  _____________________

Signature Guaranteed:

_____________________________ ________________________________
(e.g. Bank, Trust Company (Registered Owner)
or Securities Firm)

NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the
name of the registered owner as it appears upon the
face of the within Note in every particular
(Authorized Officer), without alteration or
enlargement or any change whatever.

____________________________
(Authorized Officer)

Section 67.09, Wisconsin Statutes provides that the City Clerk of the City when acting as the
registrar shall record the registration of each note or bond in its bond registrar.  Therefore, if this
Note is to be assigned, the City Clerk of the City should be notified and a copy of this
Assignment should be sent to the City Clerk of the City for his or her records.



Standard

Deleted cell

#73881405v1<docs.quarles.com> - Waterloo, C of - 22
Rev BAN - Resolution

Moved cell

Legend:

Split/Merged cell

Insertion

Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Wednesday, June 15, 2022
2:32:44 PM

Padding cell

Document 2 ID

Deletion

Statistics:

Document 1 ID

iManage://docs.quarles.com/ACTIVE/73881405/2

Count

Moved from

Insertions 68

Moved to

Deletions

iManage://docs.quarles.com/ACTIVE/73881405/1

46

Description

Moved from

Style change

1

Moved to

#73881405v2<docs.quarles.com> - Waterloo, C of - 22
Rev BAN - Resolution

1

Format change

Style changes 0

Moved deletion

Format changes

Input:

0

Rendering set

Total changes

Inserted cell

116

Description





Financing Plan Issue Sizing
Bank Note Bank Note

GO Notes GO Notes
2022 2022

Projects
Levy - Streets 1,264,262 1,264,262
Levy - Public Works 181,685 181,685
Water Utility 500,000 0

Project Needs 1,945,947 1,445,947

Rate Months
Less Interest Earnings 0.62% 6  (6,032) (4,482)

Rounding 85 3,535

Size of Issue 1,940,000 1,445,000

Page 1

Financing with Utility Participation



Projected Impact of Proposed Projects - With Utility Participation
Projected Debt Service

Less 
Abatements

Impact on a

 $   200,000 of Value

Taxes Change

YEAR YEAR Prin (5/1) Rate Interest Total YEAR
2021 236,117,000 3.91% 839,622   (547,391)    292,231  1.24 2021 292,231    1.24 247.53   1.24 2021
2022 256,338,000 8.56% 757,738   (423,313)    334,425  1.30 2022 334,425    1.30 260.93   1.30 2022
2023 258,901,380 1.00% 429,504   (110,553)    318,952  1.23 2023 125,000   3.25% 79,583    204,583   (55,466)    149,117   468,069    133,644   1.81 361.58   100.66 1.81 2023
2024 261,490,394 1.00% 370,723   (114,320)    256,403  0.98 2024 185,000   3.25% 55,981    240,981   (59,381)    181,600   438,003    (30,066)    1.68 335.01   (26.58) 1.64 2024
2025 264,105,298 1.00% 317,432   (117,923)    199,509  0.76 2025 215,000   3.25% 49,481    264,481   (57,919)    206,562   406,071    (31,932)    1.54 307.51   (27.50) 1.48 2025
2026 266,746,351 1.00% 309,369   (121,355)    188,014  0.70 2026 200,000   3.25% 42,738    242,738   (61,375)    181,363   369,377    (36,694)    1.38 276.95   (30.56) 1.31 2026
2027 269,413,814 1.00% 306,169   (119,655)    186,514  0.69 2027 175,000   3.25% 36,644    211,644   (59,750)    151,894   338,408    (30,969)    1.26 251.22   (25.73) 1.16 2027
2028 272,107,952 1.00% 307,732   (122,818)    184,914  0.68 2028 150,000   3.25% 31,363    181,363   (58,125)    123,238   308,152    (30,256)    1.13 226.49   (24.73) 1.03 2028
2029 274,829,032 1.00% 204,929   (120,815)    84,114   0.31 2029 230,000   3.25% 25,188    255,188   (61,419)    193,769   277,883    (30,269)    1.01 202.22   (24.27) 0.90 2029
2030 277,577,322 1.00% 207,755   (123,641)    84,114   0.30 2030 205,000   3.25% 18,119    223,119   (59,631)    163,488   247,602    (30,281)    0.89 178.40   (23.82) 0.78 2030
2031 280,353,095 1.00% 173,611   (126,225)    47,386   0.17 2031 215,000   3.25% 11,294    226,294   (57,844)    168,450   215,836    (31,766)    0.77 153.97   (24.43) 0.66 2031
2032 283,156,626 1.00% 143,365   (143,365)    0.00 2032 240,000   3.25% 3,900    243,900   (60,975)    182,925   182,925    (32,911)    0.65 129.20   (24.77) 0.54 2032
2033 285,988,193 1.00% 149,953   (149,953)    0.00 2033 (182,925)  0.00 (129.20) 0.00 2033
2034 288,848,075 1.00% 156,105   (156,105)    0.00 2034 0.00 0.00 0.00 2034
2035 291,736,555 1.00% 161,860   (161,860)    0.00 2035 0.00 0.00 0.00 2035
2036 294,653,921 1.00% 157,285   (157,285)    0.00 2036 0.00 0.00 0.00 2036
2037 297,600,460 1.00% 157,480   (157,480)    0.00 2037 0.00 0.00 0.00 2037

TOTALS 5,150,631 (2,974,055) 2,176,576 TOTALS 1,940,000 354,290 2,294,290 (591,885) 1,702,406 3,878,982 TOTALS

NOTES

Existing Debt Payments

Equalized 
Value 

Projection

Total of All 
Obligations

Total 
Abatement 

Sources

Net Debt 
Service Levy

Debt 
Service 

Tax Rate
$1,940,000

Change 
in Value

Debt 
Service 

Tax Rate

Net Debt 
Service Levy

Total 
Projected 

Debt Service 
Less 

Abatements

Levy 
ChangeWater 

Projects

General Obligation Notes, 2022

Dated 7-15-22

Debt 
Service Tax 
Rate @ 3% 

Growth

Page 2



Allocation of General Obligation Notes, 2022
Issue Issue 7
Purpose
Amount
Dated

Payment Date

Year Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Interest Total Outstanding
2022 0.00% -  -  -  - -  - 1,940,000 
2023 75,000  3.25% 51,789  126,789  15,000  3.25% 7,329  22,329  35,000  3.25% 20,466  55,466  125,000 79,583  204,583 1,815,000 
2024 125,000  3.25% 36,481  161,481  15,000  3.25% 5,119  20,119  45,000  3.25% 14,381  59,381  185,000 55,981  240,981 1,630,000 
2025 155,000  3.25% 31,931  186,931  15,000  3.25% 4,631  19,631  45,000  3.25% 12,919  57,919  215,000 49,481  264,481 1,415,000 
2026 135,000  3.25% 27,219  162,219  15,000  3.25% 4,144  19,144  50,000  3.25% 11,375  61,375  200,000 42,738  242,738 1,215,000 
2027 105,000  3.25% 23,319  128,319  20,000  3.25% 3,575  23,575  50,000  3.25% 9,750  59,750  175,000 36,644  211,644 1,040,000 
2028 80,000  3.25% 20,313  100,313  20,000  3.25% 2,925  22,925  50,000  3.25% 8,125  58,125  150,000 31,363  181,363 890,000 
2029 155,000  3.25% 16,494  171,494  20,000  3.25% 2,275  22,275  55,000  3.25% 6,419  61,419  230,000 25,188  255,188 660,000 
2030 130,000  3.25% 11,863  141,863  20,000  3.25% 1,625  21,625  55,000  3.25% 4,631  59,631  205,000 18,119  223,119 455,000 
2031 140,000  3.25% 7,475  147,475  20,000  3.25% 975  20,975  55,000  3.25% 2,844  57,844  215,000 11,294  226,294 240,000 
2032 160,000  3.25% 2,600  162,600  20,000  3.25% 325  20,325  60,000  3.25% 975  60,975  240,000 3,900  243,900 - 

1,260,000$   229,483$  1,489,483$   180,000$  32,923$  212,923$  500,000$  91,885$  591,885$  1,940,000$  354,290$  2,294,290$  

7/15/2022 7/15/2022 7/15/2022

TOTAL 
$1,260,000 $180,000 $500,000

Levy - Streets Levy - Public Works Water Projects

5/1 5/1 5/1

Page 3



Debt Limit Calculation

28.39%
37.45% 33.42% 29.43%

25.65%
22.08%

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$16,000

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

City Approved Policy = 75%

Statutory Debt Limit (5% of EV) 75% of Statutory Debt Limit Principal Outstanding

Page 4



Financing Plan Issue Sizing
Bank Note Bank Note

GO Notes GO Notes
2022 2022

Projects
Levy - Streets 1,264,262 1,264,262
Levy - Public Works 181,685 181,685
Water Utility 500,000 0

Project Needs 1,945,947 1,445,947

Rate Months
Less Interest Earnings 0.62% 6  (6,032) (4,482)

Rounding 85 3,535

Size of Issue 1,940,000 1,445,000

Page 1

Financing without Utility Participation



Projected Impact of Proposed Projects - No Utility Participation
Projected Debt Service

Less 
Abatements

Impact on a

 $   200,000 of Value

Taxes Change

YEAR YEAR Prin (5/1) Rate Interest Total YEAR
2021 236,117,000 3.91% 839,622     (547,391)      292,231       1.24 2021                                                                                292,231      1.24 247.53        1.24 2021
2022 256,338,000 8.56% 757,738     (423,313)      334,425       1.30 2022                                                                                                        334,425      1.30 260.93        1.30 2022
2023 258,901,380 1.00% 429,504     (110,553)      318,952       1.23 2023 95,000         3.25% 59,247   154,247                               154,247        473,199      138,774   1.83 365.54        104.62 1.83 2023
2024 261,490,394 1.00% 370,723     (114,320)      256,403       0.98 2024 140,000       3.25% 41,600   181,600                               181,600        438,003      (35,196)    1.68 335.01        (30.54) 1.64 2024
2025 264,105,298 1.00% 317,432     (117,923)      199,509       0.76 2025 170,000       3.25% 36,563   206,563                               206,563        406,072      (31,931)    1.54 307.51        (27.50) 1.48 2025
2026 266,746,351 1.00% 309,369     (121,355)      188,014       0.70 2026 150,000       3.25% 31,363   181,363                               181,363        369,377      (36,695)    1.38 276.95        (30.56) 1.31 2026
2027 269,413,814 1.00% 306,169     (119,655)      186,514       0.69 2027 125,000       3.25% 26,894   151,894                               151,894        338,408      (30,969)    1.26 251.22        (25.73) 1.16 2027
2028 272,107,952 1.00% 307,732     (122,818)      184,914       0.68 2028 100,000       3.25% 23,238   123,238                               123,238        308,152      (30,256)    1.13 226.49        (24.73) 1.03 2028
2029 274,829,032 1.00% 204,929     (120,815)      84,114         0.31 2029 175,000       3.25% 18,769   193,769                               193,769        277,883      (30,269)    1.01 202.22        (24.27) 0.90 2029
2030 277,577,322 1.00% 207,755     (123,641)      84,114         0.30 2030 150,000       3.25% 13,488   163,488                               163,488        247,602      (30,281)    0.89 178.40        (23.82) 0.78 2030
2031 280,353,095 1.00% 173,611     (126,225)      47,386         0.17 2031 160,000       3.25% 8,450     168,450                               168,450        215,836      (31,766)    0.77 153.97        (24.43) 0.66 2031
2032 283,156,626 1.00% 143,365     (143,365)                           0.00 2032 180,000       3.25% 2,925     182,925                               182,925        182,925      (32,911)    0.65 129.20        (24.77) 0.54 2032
2033 285,988,193 1.00% 149,953     (149,953)                           0.00 2033                                                                                                                            (182,925)  0.00                     (129.20) 0.00 2033
2034 288,848,075 1.00% 156,105     (156,105)                           0.00 2034                                                                                                                                              0.00                     0.00 0.00 2034
2035 291,736,555 1.00% 161,860     (161,860)                           0.00 2035                                                                                                                                              0.00                     0.00 0.00 2035
2036 294,653,921 1.00% 157,285     (157,285)                           0.00 2036                                                                                                                                              0.00                     0.00 0.00 2036
2037 297,600,460 1.00% 157,480     (157,480)                           0.00 2037                                                                                                                                              0.00                     0.00 0.00 2037

TOTALS 5,150,631 (2,974,055) 2,176,576 TOTALS 1,445,000 262,534 1,707,534 0 1,707,537 3,884,113 TOTALS

NOTES

Existing Debt Payments

Equalized 
Value 

Projection

Total of All 
Obligations

Total 
Abatement 

Sources

Net Debt 
Service Levy

Debt 
Service 

Tax Rate

Change 
in Value

Debt 
Service 

Tax Rate

Net Debt 
Service Levy

Total 
Projected 

Debt Service 
Less 

Abatements

Levy 
ChangeWater 

Projects

General Obligation Notes, 2022
$1,445,000

Dated 7-15-22

Debt 
Service Tax 
Rate @ 3% 

Growth

Page 2

Financing without Utility Participation



Allocation of General Obligation Notes, 2022
Issue Issue 8
Purpose
Amount
Dated
Payment Date

Year Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Interest Total Outstanding
2022 0.00% -                                    -                               -                   -                -                   1,445,000   
2023 80,000         3.25% 51,918      131,918       15,000      3.25% 7,329      22,329      95,000         59,247      154,247       1,350,000   
2024 125,000       3.25% 36,481      161,481       15,000      3.25% 5,119      20,119      140,000       41,600      181,600       1,210,000   
2025 155,000       3.25% 31,931      186,931       15,000      3.25% 4,631      19,631      170,000       36,563      206,563       1,040,000   
2026 135,000       3.25% 27,219      162,219       15,000      3.25% 4,144      19,144      150,000       31,363      181,363       890,000      
2027 105,000       3.25% 23,319      128,319       20,000      3.25% 3,575      23,575      125,000       26,894      151,894       765,000      
2028 80,000         3.25% 20,313      100,313       20,000      3.25% 2,925      22,925      100,000       23,238      123,238       665,000      
2029 155,000       3.25% 16,494      171,494       20,000      3.25% 2,275      22,275      175,000       18,769      193,769       490,000      
2030 130,000       3.25% 11,863      141,863       20,000      3.25% 1,625      21,625      150,000       13,488      163,488       340,000      
2031 140,000       3.25% 7,475        147,475       20,000      3.25% 975         20,975      160,000       8,450        168,450       180,000      
2032 160,000       3.25% 2,600        162,600       20,000      3.25% 325         20,325      180,000       2,925        182,925       -                  

1,265,000$  229,612$  1,494,612$  180,000$  32,923$  212,923$  1,445,000$  262,534$  1,707,534$  

7/15/2022 7/15/2022

TOTAL 
$1,265,000 $180,000

Levy - Streets Levy - Public Works

5/1 5/1

Page 3

Financing without Utility Participation



Debt Limit Calculation

28.39%
33.77% 30.00% 26.37%

22.95%
19.76%

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$16,000

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

City Approved Policy = 75%

Statutory Debt Limit (5% of EV) 75% of Statutory Debt Limit Principal Outstanding

Page 4

Financing without Utility Participation



June 16, 2022  

SALE DAY REPORT FOR:  

City of Waterloo, Wisconsin 

$17,114,000 Taxable Combined Utility Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, 
Series 2022A 

Prepared by: 

Ehlers  
N21W23350 Ridgeview Parkway West, 
Suite 100 
Waukesha, WI 53188 

David Ferris, CPA, 
Senior Municipal Advisor 

Philip Cosson, 
Senior Municipal Advisor  

BUILDING COMMUNITIES. IT’S WHAT WE DO.



 

 

 
 

 
TERM SHEET 

 
 
DATE: June 15, 2022 
 
ISSUE: Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, 2022 (the "Note") 
 
ISSUER/BORROWER: Waterloo Water and Light Commission 

An Enterprise Fund of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin (the “City”) 
 
PURCHASER/LENDER: The Huntington National Bank (“Huntington”) 
 
SECURITY: The Note will be secured by repayment from the proceeds of USDA long-term financing. 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $17,114,000.00 
 
STRUCTURE: Draw down structure with a minimum of $1,000,000.00 drawn at closing 
 
USE OF PROCEEDS:  The proceeds from the sale of the Note will fund a Wastewater Treatment Facility 

upgrade project that includes renovation of the administration building, new waste 
receiving station, new headworks building, new biological phosphorus tanks, new final 
clarifier, renovation of service building, installation of a new UV disinfection system and a 
complete overhaul of the digestor. 

 
BOND COUNSEL: Quarles & Brady LLC 
 
PURCHASER’S COUNSEL: Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP 
 
CLOSING DATE: No later than June 30, 2022 
 
TAX STATUS:   Taxable 
 
FINAL MATURITY: June 30, 2025 
  
OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT: The Note is subject to optional redemption on or after June 30, 2024 in whole but not in 

part, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption upon 30 days prior 
written notice to the Purchaser.  

 
INTEREST RATE: Interest shall accrue daily and the Interest Rate shall be adjusted on the first business 

day of the month based on the Overnight SOFR (floor of 0) in accordance with the 
following formula: 

 
Overnight SOFR (or floor of 0) + 1.34%  
 
“SOFR” is defined as the secured overnight financing rate administered by the Federal 
Reserve Bank of New York (or a related forward-looking term rate).  
 
As of June 15, 2022, the rate is: the Overnight SOFR of 0.69 + 1.34% = 2.03%  
 
In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, the maximum variable interest rate on this Note 
is 10.00%. 
 
If (a) Huntington determines that the Overnight SOFR cannot be determined pursuant to 
the definition thereof, (b) such rate is not available at such time for any reason, or (c) the 
Huntington makes the determination to incorporate or adopt a new interest rate to replace 
the Overnight SOFR in credit agreements, then Huntington may replace the Overnight 

Page 1



  
Term Sheet – Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Waterloo Water & Light Commission, City of Waterloo, WI Page 2 

 

 

SOFR with an alternate interest rate and adjustment, if applicable, as reasonably 
selected by Huntington and the Issuer, giving due consideration to any evolving or then 
existing conventions for such interest rate and adjustment (any such successor interest 
rate, as adjusted, the "Successor Rate"); provided, that neither party may unreasonably 
withhold their consent to such Successor Rate.  
 
If a Successor Rate cannot be agreed upon within 10 Business Days (or such shorter 
time period necessary to ensure a Successor Rate is available) of the occurrence of the 
events described in the preceding sentence, the Successor Rate shall be the"12 Month 
Swap Interest Rate" defined as the product of (a) the sum of (i) the rate shown for USD 
Rates 1100 at http://www.theice.marketdata/reports/180 for a 1 year period, plus (ii) a 
spread that will maintain the economics of Huntington’s initial interest rate.  
 
In connection with the implementation of the Successor Rate, the Issuer and Huntington 
agree that Huntington has the right, from time to time, in good faith to make any 
conforming, technical, administrative or operational changes to the Note as may be 
appropriate to reflect the adoption and administration thereof. 

 
FEE TO HUNTINGTON 
FOR COUNSEL: Not to exceed $4,000.00 
 
TRANSACTION FEES: All transaction fees, including those of Bond Counsel, shall be the responsibility of the 

Issuer. 
 
INTEREST PAYMENTS: Semiannually on each January 1 and July 1, beginning January 1, 2023. Interest will be 

computed on the basis of a 360‐day year consisting of twelve 30‐day months. 
 
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS: Due and payable at maturity on June 30, 2025. 
 
DIRECT PLACEMENT: Huntington is extending credit as a lender in the usual course of its loan business through 

the purchase of the Note for its own account in its normal and customary business 
practice, with no current intention on the resale, distribution or transfer thereof. 

 
TERM NOTE ELECTION: The Note will be a single certificate term note, with principal payments representing 

mandatory principal redemptions. 
 
DOCUMENTATION: Transaction documents shall be prepared by Bond Counsel, subject to review and 

approval by Huntington and its Purchaser’s Counsel.   
 
PAYING AGENT: Waterloo Water and Light Commission 

An Enterprise Fund of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin (the “City”) 
 

RATING: Not required by Huntington 
 
POS/OFFICIAL STATEMENT: Not required by Huntington 
 
CUSIP: Not required by Huntington 
 
DTC CLOSING: Not required by Huntington 
 
PROPOSAL EXPIRATION: This proposal shall expire at Huntington’s option if (a) Huntington has not received the 

Issuer’s written acceptance by June 17, 2022 and (b) if the closing date of the Note has 
not occurred by June 30, 2022. 

 
HUNTINGTON CONTACT: Abby King 
 Huntington Public Capital 
 Cell: (614) 204-0121 
 Email:  abby.king@huntington.com   

Page 2

mailto:abby.king@huntington.com


  
Term Sheet – Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Waterloo Water & Light Commission, City of Waterloo, WI Page 3 

 

 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Abigail E King 
 
ACCEPTED BY: 
Waterloo Water and Light Commission 
An Enterprise Fund of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin (the “City”) 
 
        
By 
        
Name 
        
Title 
        
Date 
 
Huntington Public Capital® ("HPC"), a division of The Huntington National Bank (the "Bank"), is providing the information contained in this document for 
discussion purposes only in connection with an arm's-length transaction under discussion between you and HPC. If you are a "municipal entity" or 
"obligated person" within the meaning of the municipal advisor rules (the "Rules") of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Rule 15Ba1-1 et seq. 
this information is provided to you pursuant to and in reliance upon the "bank exemption," and/or other exemptions and/or the "general information" 
exclusion provided under the Rules. HPC is acting for its own interest and has financial and other interests that differ from yours. HPC is not acting as a 
municipal advisor or financial advisor, and has no fiduciary duty, to you or any other person pursuant to the Rules. The information provided in this 
document is not intended to be and should not be construed as "advice" within the meaning of the Rules. HPC is not recommending that you take or 
refrain from taking any action with respect to the information contained in this document. Before acting on this information, you should discuss it with 
your own financial and/or municipal, legal, accounting, tax and other advisors as you deem appropriate. As used in this notice, the "Rules" means 
Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Securities and Exchange Commission's Rule 15Ba1-1, et seq., and any related municipal 
advisor rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, all as they may be amended from time to time.  

Page 3



City of Waterloo, Wisconsin
$17,114,000 Taxable Comb Util Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes

SINGLE PURPOSE

Dated: June 30, 2022 Purchaser: The Huntington National Bank

Sources & Uses

Dated 06/30/2022 |  Delivered 06/30/2022

Sources Of Funds

Par Amount of Bonds $17,114,000.00
Est. Int Earnings @ 0.16% for 6 months 13,648.00

Total Sources $17,127,648.00

Uses Of Funds

Municipal Advisor 38,100.00
Bank Counsel 4,000.00
Bond Counsel 25,000.00
Deposit to Project Construction Fund 17,060,548.00

Total Uses $17,127,648.00

2022 $17114m TAXABLE RBAN  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  6/ 1/2022  |  9:23 AM

Page 4



City of Waterloo, Wisconsin
$17,114,000 Taxable Comb Util Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes

SINGLE PURPOSE

Dated: June 30, 2022 Purchaser: The Huntington National Bank

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

06/30/2022 - 2.420% - -
01/02/2023 - 2.670% 13,670.92 13,670.92
07/03/2023 - 3.020% 22,262.35 22,262.35
01/01/2024 - 3.320% 98,107.84 98,107.84
07/01/2024 - 3.570% 201,518.54 201,518.54
01/01/2025 - 3.920% 313,929.87 313,929.87
06/30/2025 17,114,000.00 4.170% 341,482.91 17,455,482.91
07/01/2025 - 4.170% - -

Total $17,114,000.00 - $990,972.43 $18,104,972.43

2022 $17114m TAXABLE RBAN  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  6/ 1/2022  |  9:23 AM

Page 5



City of Waterloo, Wisconsin
$17,114,000 Taxable Comb Util Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes

SINGLE PURPOSE

Dated: June 30, 2022 Purchaser: The Huntington National Bank

Operation Of Project Construction Fund

Date Principal Rate Receipts Disbursements Cash Balance

06/30/2022 1,000,000.00 - 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 -
04/30/2023 939,500.00 - 939,500.00 939,500.00 -
05/31/2023 923,500.00 - 923,500.00 923,500.00 -
06/30/2023 938,500.00 - 938,500.00 938,500.00 -
07/31/2023 948,500.00 - 948,500.00 948,500.00 -
08/31/2023 948,500.00 - 948,500.00 948,500.00 -
09/30/2023 923,500.00 - 923,500.00 923,500.00 -
10/31/2023 923,500.00 - 923,500.00 923,500.00 -
11/30/2023 913,500.00 - 913,500.00 913,500.00 -
12/31/2023 908,500.00 - 908,500.00 908,500.00 -
01/31/2024 898,500.00 - 898,500.00 898,500.00 -
02/29/2024 898,500.00 - 898,500.00 898,500.00 -
03/31/2024 903,500.00 - 903,500.00 903,500.00 -
04/30/2024 999,500.00 - 999,500.00 999,500.00 -
05/31/2024 1,033,500.00 - 1,033,500.00 1,033,500.00 -
06/30/2024 1,097,500.00 - 1,097,500.00 1,097,500.00 -
07/31/2024 1,017,500.00 - 1,017,500.00 1,017,500.00 -
08/31/2024 844,548.00 - 844,548.00 844,548.00 -

Total $17,060,548.00 - $17,060,548.00 $17,060,548.00 -

2022 $17114m TAXABLE RBAN  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  6/ 1/2022  |  9:23 AM

Page 6



4 YEAR TREND IN MUNICIPAL BOND INDICES

Source: The Bond Buyer

The Bond Buyer “20 Bond Index” (BBI) shows average yields on a group of municipal bonds that 
mature in 20 years and have an average rating equivalent to Moody’s Aa2 and S&P’s AA. 

Page 7







Page 1 of 1  

HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/FILESHARES/DATA/common/resolutions/2022 resolutions/b - proposed/2022-21 use of contingency funds for park 
repair/#2022-21 use contingency for parks lower pavilion 2022.docx 
6/14/2022 12:43 PM 

                                           

                          136 North Monroe Street 
   Waterloo, WI 53594-1198 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
Fax: (920) 478-2021  

            www.waterloowi.us 

 

______________________________________________________________________________              _ 
 

RESOLUTION #2022-21 
Authorizing The Use of 2022 Emergency Operational Contingency Funds (100-51-5190-905) 

To Fund the Repair of Lower Pavilion Electrical Outlets, Not To Exceed $500  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Waterloo 2022 General Fund, upon adoption had $35,000 budgeted for 
emergency operational contingencies, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Finance, Insurance & Personnel Committee at its June 16, 2022 meeting 
recommended use of such funds to repair Lower Pavilion Electrical Outlets. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council hereby agrees with the Committee’s 
recommendation and authorizes the expenditures as specified in the resolution title. 
 
Date: _______________________ 
Vote: _______________________          
 
      City of Waterloo 
      Signed:  _____________________________________ 
        Jenifer Quimby 
        Mayor 
Attest: 
_________________________________________________ 
Mike Tschanz 
Treasurer/Deputy Clerk 
 
 
 
SPONSOR(S) – Finance Committee 
 
FISCAL EFFECT – With approval, a maximum of $3,400 in General Fund contingency line item 
expenditures would be authorized reducing the remaining available dollar amount for emergency 
operational contingencies to: $24,803.31 
 

http://www.waterloowi.us/

